
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 18, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Governmental Center – 2nd Floor Committee Room 
400 Boardman Ave, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 

Page 1 of 47



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Minutes of the 3/28/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       March Resident Council Minutes      2 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        3 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Foundation Board Update – Haider Kazim     Verbal  
(2)       PACE North Board Update       Verbal  
(3)       First Quarter Overtime Report      4 
   

B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Gerard Bodalski    5 
 

C.  Business 
(1)    Financials         6 

(2)       ISNP Longevity Health Plan – Gerard Bodalski    7 

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)              

 
E.       Medical Staff 

(1)  Vincent Worthington, NP       8 
              

G.T.P. Announcements   
(1)     Next Board Meeting – May 30, 2024 
(2)       2024 Concert on the Lawn Series      9 

      
11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above.   
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 47



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE MARCH 28, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Haider Kazim         Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Lindsey Dood, Darcey Gratton      Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT:                  
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township.    

 
First Public Comment – None  
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared discussions of the most recent County Board of 
Commissioner (BOC) meetings regarding the vacant DHHS Board seat and gave an update 
regarding a pending agreement between PACE North and Grand Traverse County.  Kazim gave 
an update on where the Pavilions currently stand on the litigation.  
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried.  
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 3/1/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 3/1/24 Board Meeting 
(3)       February Resident Council Minutes 
(4)       March Food Committee Minutes 
(5)       McNally Resignation 

 
Marois requested to pull (5) McNally Resignation.  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the 
Consent Calendar with the removal of (5) McNally Resignation.  Motion seconded by Marios.  
Motion carried. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – Marois pulled (5) McNally Resignation to express 
her appreciation of former DHHS Board member Cecil McNally who recently resigned as a 
board member in early March.  Marois requested to invite McNally to the April Meeting to 
officially recognize him for his years of service.   Motion was made by Marois to accept (5) 
McNally Resignation as part of the Consent Calendar and seconded by Kazim.  Motion carried. 
 

Page 3 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

 
Chairman Report – None 
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed February Service Excellence Awards. 
  
Foundation Board Update – Kazim reported the next Foundation Board is scheduled on May 
1, 2024. 
 
PACE North Board Update – Marois gave an update on recent and upcoming PACE North 
(PN) Board meetings.  Marois shared the need for the DHHS Board to appoint new board 
members to the PN Board and recommended Kazim to replace former DHHS Board member 
Cecil McNally’s seat on the PN Board and to formally appoint Bodalski to replace the former 
Administrators seat on the board.  Marois also shared the need to fill another vacancy seat due 
to Robert Barnes recently resigning from the PN Board.  Motion made by Marois to add PACE 
North Board appointments to the agenda under business, seconded by Kazim.  Motion carried.  
The Board discussed further reviewing the need for two DHHS Board members being appointed 
to the Board.  Andrews suggested having a county commissioner fill one of the vacant seats 
given the county’s interest in PACE North.  Andrews offered to fill that seat on behalf of the 
DHHS Board as the county liaison or as a citizen to replace the vacant seat of Robert Barnes.   
   
Chief Executive Officer Report – Bodalski reviewed the monthly report for February and 
highlighted on bed capacity, update on Aspen, and took a moment to celebrated staff. Bodalski 
stated growth comes with challenges and the number one challenge is expense control which 
speaks to the budget.   Bodalski reviewed the marketing analysis since the board approved a 
twelve month agreement with UpNorth Live in December.  Bodalski reported details on 
recruitment and retention with a focus on CNA’s and onboarding costs and reviewed current 
hires and the future goals of direct care staff.    
 
Financial Report – Bodalski presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for February 2024 and answered board member’s questions.  Bodalski provided a cottage 
update on repairs and it’s current state.   Motion made by Kazim to accept the financial 
operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.  
 
Andrews out 11:30am 
 
Strategic Plan – Bodalski continued to update the board on the cottages and highlighted on 
referrals, repairs and rooms being ready for occupancy.  Bodalski noted there are rooms 
needing repair by outside contractors.  Bodalski shared that he has reached out to Ray 
Minervini to discuss who we are and what the future could look like for the Cottages.  Bodalski 
stated his short-term plan for the cottages is to immediately have rooms ready for rent and is 
working on long-term planning for growth.  Bodalski also gave an update on the Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) with the bed capacity now at 182 as of February 14.  Bodalski’s short-term plan 
for the MCF is to prepare Aspen for occupancy should the Pavilions be able to increase bed 
capacity. 
 
Request to Purchase - Bladder Scanner - Bodalski reviewed the need to purchase a bladder 
scanner.  Three bids were received and the winning bid was awarded to McKesson based on 
lowest bid price.   Motion was made by Kazim to approve the purchase of one (1) new bladder 
scanner as presented for $6,448.50, seconded by Marois.  Motion carried. 
 

Page 4 of 47



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

PACE North Appointments – Motion made by Marois to appoint Haider Kazim, TJ Andrews 
and Gerard Bodalski to the PACE North Board effective immediately with the term to end on 
December 31, 2024, seconded by Kazim.  Motion carried.   
 
Change of Meeting Date – The Board discussed moving the April 25th meeting to Thursday, 
April 18th at 9:00am due to scheduling conflicts recently proposed for April 29th and April 25th. 
Location to be determined.  Motion made by Kazim to move the April meeting from April 25th to 
April 18th, seconded by Marois.  Motion carried.   
 
Attending/Consulting Privileges - The Board reviewed the requests to have consulting 
privileges for Mallorie McComb, NP and Laura Worthington, PA as recommended by Medical 
Director Dr. April Kurkowski, D.O. Motion was made by Kazim to approve consulting privileges 
for Mallorie McComb, NP and Laura Worthington, PA as presented, seconded by Marois.  
Motion carried. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting April 18, 2024  
(2) Golf Scramble Fore Seniors on May 17, 2024 

 
Second Public Comment  
 
  
Meeting adjourned at 11:48 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 47



1 
 

PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
March 21, 2024 

 
The March 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was called 
to order at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: Residents are marked “X” throughout the 
minutes. 
 
Birch Pavilion: 5 Residents attended.  

 
Cherry Pavilion: 8 Residents attended. 
 
Dogwood Pavilion: 3 Residents attended. 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Hanna Wooters, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Dogwood Pavilion 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
Christian Anderson, General Manager – Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Dietary Administrative Assistant – Forefront Dining Services 
Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director 
Cati Kujawski, Environmental Services Manager 
 
Guest: 
Tom Hoxie, American Sign Language (ASL) interpreter 
 
Old Business: 
From February: 

- Christian shared with everyone present that new menus will be coming out on 
April 1st and chili, goulash and a few other items that residents have suggested 
having will be included. 

- Kari shared with everyone the following activity suggestions from the February 
meeting were planned and/or held in March and/or April. 

o Color Easter eggs (planned for 03/28/2024) 
o Have root beer floats (held 03/07/2024) and banana splits (planned for 

03/28/2024) 
o Wear green clothes for St. Patrick’s Day (held 03/17/2024) 

Page 6 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
2



2 
 

o Watch The Wizard of Oz (shown 03/15/2024), Pretty Woman (shown 
03/08/2024) and Laurel & Hardy (shown 03/01/2024) 

o Shopping at Walmart is planned for 04/04/2024; Hobby Lobby will be in 
May/June 2024. 

 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  
- Introduction of Hanna Wooters, Recreational Therapist who has joined the Life 

Enrichment Department with Linda, Kari, Susan and Guy.  
- Linda is retiring on Friday April 12 after 34 years of working at the Pavilions.  
 
Outings for April 2024: 
Thursday April 4 – Shopping at Walmart (suggested by X) 

Board bus at 10:00am, return pick-up to come home at 12:00pm 
Thursday April 11 – Lunch at China Fair (suggested by X) 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return pick-up to come home at 1:30pm 
Tuesday April 16 – Shopping at Dollar Tree (suggested by X) 

Board bus at 2:00pm, return pick-up to come home at 3:30pm 
 

Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as 
well as an alternate outing if they desired. 

 
April Special Events: 
Friday April 5 – Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – MPR 
Friday April 5 – Detroit Tigers Home Opener on the Big Screen vs Oakland Athletics –  

1:05pm – MPR 
Friday April 12 – Congratulations Linda!! – 11:00am – MPR 
Thursday April 18 – Pavilions Resident Council Meeting – 11:00am – MPR  
Friday April 26 – Music/Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am – MPR 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that there are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Activities. 
 
Activities:  

• Activity programs are supposed to meet your interests and needs. Do you feel the 
activities here do that? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Do you participate in the activities here? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Do you enjoy them? 
All residents present said yes. 

Page 7 of 47



3 
 

• Are there enough helpers and supplies available so that everyone who wants to can 
participate? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Do you as a group have input into the selection of the activities that are offered? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Does the facility follow up on your suggestions? 
All residents present said yes. 

 

• Do you have other feedback about the activities program here? 
All residents present said yes. One resident commented that she has enjoyed the 
bowling and painting activities. 
 

• In addition to scheduled activities, are there opportunities for you to socialize with 
other residents? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Are there places you can go when you want to be with other residents? 
All residents present said yes. 

 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
Many residents attended the Let’s Talk Food meeting that was held on March 12, 2024; 
the next meeting will be April 17th at 2:00pm. 
Christian shared for Easter Sunday, the menu will be Baked Glazed Ham, Lemon  

Asparagus, Deviled Eggs, Dinner Roll, and Frosted White Cake. Residents told 
Christian that he better plan to have lots of deviled eggs available for everyone. 

Residents present at the meeting provided the following suggestions and comments: 

• The potato salad is good, but the potatoes could be cooked a little longer and add 
some mustard into the dressing, and then it would be perfect. 

• Could we have chicken legs and chicken wings? 

• The biscuits and gravy have improved greatly. 

• The spareribs were delicious, they fell off the bone! 

• I love having omelets at breakfast, they are wonderful! 
 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
All residents present at the meeting said everything is great with the cleanliness of the 
building and their laundry being cleaned and returned promptly. 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
One resident commented that they feel the temperature in the building varies 
throughout the day; one commented that she gets a little warm at night but is okay.  

Page 8 of 47



4 
 

Tim told everyone present that with the varying temperatures occurring outdoors, 
it can be difficult to maintain an exact consistent temperature throughout the 
building, and that the overall temperature is not to be lower than 71 degrees and 
no higher than 76 degrees. Tim did ask residents to have their nursing team call 
himself or the Environmental Services Department if they are experiencing large 
temperature swings or shifts, or any other special issues that need to be 
addressed. 

 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
All residents present at the meeting said “good.” One resident asked if education could 
be provided to staff on how to make a bed after it has been stripped and washed, as her 
bed is usually stripped and washed by 7:30am and sometimes it is not made back up 
until later in the afternoon. 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
All residents present at the meeting said “alright.” 
 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
All residents present at the meeting said, “Yes.”   
 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on their home Pavilion. 
One resident commented that she hears the staff talking at night and their 
conversations are too loud at times. 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
Residents gave the following suggestions for activities: 
Outings: to the Northwestern Michigan Fair in August, go to a zoo or farm, see a movie  

at the local movie theater, go fishing this summer, and Wheels on Rails this 
summer. 

 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday April 18, 2024, at 
11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the March 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:50am by X, seconded by X. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Kari Belanger, CTRS    X, Cherry Pavilion Resident 
Recreational Therapist                
 

Page 9 of 47



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- March 28th 2023 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
10:30am in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were introduced: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
12 Residents attended.  
 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Cindi Pobuda, Social Worker 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X and X answered “yes” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack.  
X stated that it happened sometimes. X stated that yes they were being offered.   
 
Asked the residents if the staff were treating them with respect.  
X stated yes they were.  
 
Asked the residents if the food was good.  
X stated that it is good. X and X stated yes the food was good. 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
No concerns were noted.  
 
Asked the residents if their clothes were getting cleaned. 
X, X and X stated that their clothes were being cleaned.  
 
Asked the residents how the temperature in their rooms were. 
X stated that it was cool in her room at night.  
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X and X stated that they had enough to do. 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
No questions or concerns were noted. 

Page 10 of 47



X suggested more walking. 
X suggested planting potato, onion and beet seedings in April. 
X suggested outside activities with kids. 
 
Activity update by Susan Eldred: See Attached 
 
Meeting was closed at 11:00am 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS   Cindi Pobuda LBSW                   Naomi Rode, BSN, RN  
 

Page 11 of 47



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

March 2024 

  

Date: 03/04/2024 
Employee: Erica Nesvig-Paddock 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for helping to cover the therapy department day to day schedule while I had 
to be gone! The assistance coordinating all the schedules and patients is greatly 
appreciated. 

Position: Physical Therapist  

Nominated by: Kristen Semeyn 

  

Date: 03/04/2024 
Employee: Shelly Coddington 

Awarded for: 

Thank you for always helping me with quotes and other supply issues.  You are always 
quick to respond and easy to communicate with.  I appreciate you putting the residents 
first and helping me by giving me all the info on pricing, availability, and arrival times.  
Thank you for being you. 

Position: Environmental Services  

Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

  

Date: 03/11/2024 
Employee: Sarah Backlund 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for a very special Valentine's Day treat to our residents. You invited many 
smiles and made their day! 

Position: Life Enrichment Coordinator 

Nominated by: Melissa Gomez 

  

Date: 03/11/2024 
Employee: Natalia Johnson 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for your excellent care to our residents. You are a wealth of knowledge and 
when an admission came in that was not as expected, you handled the challenges with 
grace and confidence. I appreciate you! 

Position:  Cottage RN 

Nominated by: Melissa Gomez  

  

Date: 03/18/2024 
Employee: Alexys Corby 

Awarded for: Assisting with a difficult lab draw and transfer. Thank you for your help! 
Position:  RN Case Manager 

Nominated by: Melanie Farmer ADON 

 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Date: 03/18/2024 
Employee: Brooke Araizaga 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for coming back to work after working the AM shift. We appreciate your 
willingness to help when needed! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Janet VanWingerden 

Date: 3/25/2024 
Employee: Ashley Joseph 

Awarded for: 
Ashley took the time to fill out an entire week's worth of meal tickets with a resident 
today. Ashley goes above and beyond and makes sure this resident feels informed and 
involved with their meals! Ashley has a special bond with this resident. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Sarah Pleva 

Date: 3/25/2024 
Employee: Todd Cooper 

Awarded for: Quick response for cleaning up a resident’s room. 
Position:  Custodian 

Nominated by: Matt Kilander 

Date:  
Employee:  

Awarded for:  
Position:   

Nominated by:  

Date:  
Employee:  

Awarded for:  
Position:   

Nominated by:  

Page 13 of 47

dgratton
Text Box



Grand Traverse Pavilions    
Quarterly Overtime Rolling Calendar Lookback

Pay Dates In:  
Department 1st Qtr 2024 4th Qtr 2023 3rd Qtr 2023 2nd Qtr 2023

Administration 25.63$          0.001% 463.98$        0.012% 126.77$        0.003% 306.35$        0.007%

Adult Day Services -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000%

Child Day Care 1,371.65$     0.030% 538.04$        0.014% 598.66$        0.014% 886.06$        0.020%

CNA 68,401.19$   1.565% 52,222.11$   1.394% 37,997.32$   0.869% 25,398.55$   0.577%

CNA Training -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000%

Marketing/Foundation -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000% -$             0.000%

Cottages 22,113.20$   0.479% 14,005.90$   0.374% 11,916.94$   0.273% 12,238.84$   0.278%

Diversional Therapy 2,844.32$     0.062% 2,048.81$     0.055% 1,359.08$     0.031% 817.12$        0.019%

Financial Mgt. 483.14$        0.010% 7,472.44$     0.199% -$             0.000% -$             0.000%

Housekeeping 2,340.47$     0.051% 3,143.61$     0.084% 9,874.17$     0.226% 7,873.76$     0.179%

Human Resources 112.20$        0.002% 61.20$          0.002% 35.27$          0.001% 44.08$          0.001%

Human Services 21.18$          0.000% 661.71$        0.018% 547.41$        0.013% 22.88$          0.001%

Laundry 2,268.41$     0.049% 1,652.34$     0.044% 2,060.82$     0.047% 2,164.39$     0.049%

LPN 15,029.75$   0.325% 16,691.57$   0.445% 16,240.14$   0.372% 7,077.04$     0.161%

Maintenance 7,699.75$     0.167% 4,141.46$     0.111% 5,703.83$     0.131% 6,187.72$     0.140%

Nursing Administration 11,573.41$   0.251% 7,237.00$     0.193% 2,846.26$     0.065% 3,596.28$     0.082%

RN 25,022.29$   0.542% 23,761.10$   0.634% 26,888.34$   0.615% 18,934.60$   0.430%

Therapies - PT, OT 5,768.52$     0.125% 3,408.40$     0.091% 5,475.91$     0.125% 746.26$        0.017%

Totals 165,075.11$ 137,509.67$ 121,670.92$ 86,293.93$   

% of payroll 3.658% 3.670% 2.784% 1.959%

Page 14 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
4



Page 15 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
5



Page 16 of 47



Page 17 of 47



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

March 2024 

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in March was $2,683,056 resulting in a 
favorable budget variance of $253,739.   
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in March were $2,673,393 
resulting in an unfavorable variance to budget of $298,124.  

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net income of $9,663 from the combined programs of the Pavilions in 
March resulting in an unfavorable budget variance of $44,385.  

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total operating cash held by the County at month-end was $2,719,941. There 
was a net decrease (less brought in than was spent) in overall cash of 
$1,430,082 for the month.  
 
The following items also negatively impacted our cash position (not expenses) in 
March: 
 
Three pay days in March which negatively impacted cash by $700,000 
Recently received older invoices of $125,000 were paid during March. 
Repayment of previously adjusted QAS revenue of $99,323 
Direct care worker wage reimbursement was credited in early April instead of late 
in March as is the typical pay schedule negatively impacting cash by $68,306 
The increase in accounts receivable also negatively impacted cash by $579,000 
 
Other cash inflows and outlays were typical and can be seen in the Cash Flow  
Statement.  
 
We are projecting no net change in cash for April, even with the bond payment 
due at the end of the month. 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 18 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 

 

VOUCHERS:        
Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation 
reviewed for voucher numbers 5524-5534 for the month of March and were in 
order without exception.  
 
 
 
 

Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for March averaged 163 residents which was eighteen above the 
budgeted census and six more than the prior month.  Private pay census was 
one more than budget, Medicare was nine above, Medicaid was twelve above 
and Hospice was four below the budgeted census.  Seven of the private pay 
residents are in the process of applying for Medicaid. The occupancy for March 
was 68% of licensed beds and 90% of available beds.     
 
Our average rate per patient day (“PPD”) rate for resident revenue was $3.65 
over budget (favorable) which was driven by the higher Medicare census.  
Medicare rates remain under state and national averages and continue to remain 
an area of focus for the clinical team that perform the assessments that 
determine the rates. 
 
Other revenue was $236,837 on a budget of $140,200 for a favorable variance of 
$96,637 for the month.    
 
Total revenue was $357,647 more than budgeted for the month. 
 
We continue to explore offering an Institutional Special Needs Plan (as outlined 
in the strategic plan and the March edition of the MCMCFC “Compass”) to 
reduce hospitalizations and Emergency Room visitations for long term residents, 
improve resident care, provide flexibility for providing supplemental therapy, 
improve QM measures and add significant revenue to the organization. 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $10.19 more than budgeted for the month resulting in 

an unfavorable variance of $304,248. 
 
 Cost control measures and initiatives remain an organizational focus. 
 
   
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net income of $51,320 for the month, 
which was $53,400 better than budgeted. 

  
 

Page 19 of 47



3 

 

 
RECEIVABLES: 

Our Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) (before allowances) is 57 days as of 
3/31/2024.  This is one day more than as of 2/29/24.  Our goal for 2024 is reduce 
that number to 45 days.  Some steps in that plan are set forth below: 
 
Eight residents who are private pay are in the process of applying for Medicaid 
and one is in the process of retaining a conservator to liquidate real estate 
holdings to generate cash to pay the invoice.  This is down one from 
February.  No payment was received for them in March, which represents 
$96,000 in revenue not being collected currently.  We are in regular contact with 
the Medicaid case worker and resident attorney’s to monitor progress on the 
applications.  We have never seen a Medicaid application denied when residents 
and/or families engage an attorney to complete the planning and application. 
 
Priority Health has not been paying outpatient claims and we have been working 
for months with their provider liaison to resolve the technical issues they cite as 
being responsible for the non-payment.  During the last two months Priority 
Health has not paid inpatient claims as they had been doing and we have again 
engaged their provider liaison to resolve the underlying issue.  This totals 
approximately $600,000 in receivables representing 7 days revenue outstanding.  
We have received notice that payments of $214,335.57 have been approved and 
are expected in April.  We are signing up for electronic payments and have put in 
a production ticket to expedite remaining payments. 
 
Blue Cross Blue Shield owes the Pavilions $600,000.  All outstanding claims are 
being reviewed and reprocessed.  We are in the process of arranging a meeting 
with our provider representative to address process concerns and will sign up for 
electronic payment.   
 
Coinsurance claims amount to $100,000.  We are reviewing each and every 
claim and individually forwarding coinsurance claims to the proper payer when 
they have not automatically been forwarded by Medicare. 
 
Our hospice payer issues were resolved during March. 
 
 

 
The Cottages 

REVENUE:   
Total revenue of $252,404 generated a $82,508 unfavorable variance to the 
budget but was an improvement of $16,892 from the prior month. The average 
census for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 52 apartments during the month (9 
below budget), representing 67% occupancy.  There were 96 days of overnight 
respite provided during the month (61 more than the prior month).   Hawthorn 

Page 20 of 47



4 

 

Lofts-Independent Living average census was 1 resident per day for 33% 
occupancy.  
 
We continue to care for ten residents who are either PACE North or Medicaid  
Waiver participants who pay less than our budgeted rates. 
 

 
EXPENSES:  

Expenses for March (before depreciation) were $270,739, which was above the 
budgeted amount by $15,276 for an unfavorable variance This was a significant 
decrease in expenses of $14,421 from the prior month even with two extra days 
of costs. 
 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $41,657 resulting in an unfavorable 
variance of $97,784.   
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 
Approved 2024 Operating Budget       $ 28.7M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $5.7M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $2.7M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         9%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target      ($3.0)M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of 
current liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting 
here on the cash balance amount.  The policy requires a review of the actual fund 
balance annually. 
 
 

Page 21 of 47



Page 22 of 47



Page 23 of 47



Page 24 of 47



Page 25 of 47



Page 26 of 47



Page 27 of 47



Page 28 of 47



Page 29 of 47



Page 30 of 47



Page 31 of 47



Page 32 of 47



Page 33 of 47



Page 34 of 47



Page 35 of 47



Longevity Health
Exploratory Discussion: Institutional Special Need Plans (ISNP)

March, 2024

Confidential:  Please do not share or reproduce

Page 36 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
7



The ISNP Model of Care 
Creating Managed Care Partners vs Adversaries

2

Residents benefit from choosing a 

health plan that is focused solely on  
nursing home residents through a higher 

touch model providing  enhanced care 
coordination and supplemental benefits

SNFs benefit from a 

health plan that is focused 
solely on nursing  home 
residents through onsite 

clinical support, improved 
case management, reduction 

in administrative burden, 
improved cash flow and the 
opportunity to earn more 

net revenue

The Health Plan benefits from 

partnering with SNFS that are 
committed to the triple aim –higher  

quality, cost effective care and a 
better resident enrollee experience  

as it will lead to growth and 
profitability 

Page 37 of 47



Characteristics of an ISNP (Institutional Special Needs Plan)

❑ Medicare Advantage (MA) Plan that can only enroll long-stay residents of 
nursing homes (>90 day stay)

❑ MA plan that provides all Medicare fee for service benefits PLUS 
supplemental benefits customized for nursing home life (transportation, 
music therapy, companion services, stipends for personal care purchases 
not covered by the nursing home)

❑ MA plan that has provided a model of care (MOC) to CMS that 
demonstrates how they will address the unique characteristics of nursing 
home residents

❑ MA plan that typically executes on the MOC with an onsite advanced 
practice provider that will have significant and consistent interaction with 
the resident, their family and your SNF care team 

Page 38 of 47



Introduction to ISNP 

4

What it isn’tWhat it is 

❑ A way to prevent patients from getting 
quality care in the Nursing homes

❑ A way to unfairly reimburse nursing homes 
for providing services to LTC residents

❑ A program that impacts your post-acute 
business– only LT (90+ days) with Medicare 
Part A & B with no active d/c plan are 
eligible

❑ For everyone – not all patients are right 
clinically for ISNP

❑ A program that will work without YOUR 
support

❑ Medicare Advantage Program that offers long 
term care residents enhanced benefits and 
nursing homes improved reimbursement

❑ Clinical program that embeds nurse 
practitioners in the facilities to work with SNF 
clinical staff to improve outcomes for Long Term 
Care residents of skilled nursing facilities

❑ Quality oriented – the only way we succeed is if 
we deliver better care

❑ Partnership that creates alignment – we were 
founded by nursing-home owners

❑ Transparent – we will share any / all information 
about your residents with you

❑ More attractive economically than traditional 
Medicare for SNFs that embrace the clinical 
model

Page 39 of 47



Longevity’s Statement of Purpose:

“To improve the health and quality of life of nursing home and senior living residents by caring for their unique medical, 
social and emotional needs.”

Nationwide and Growing

5Confidential – do not reproduce or distribute

❖ Longevity is the fastest 

growing ISNP plan and 

IPA Provider in the 

country, providing care to 

~8,000 members at more 

than 300 skilled nursing 

facilities and senior living 

communities in 15+ 

distinct markets.

❖ Expanding to additional 

markets in 2024/2025

❖ AET / HUM relationship 

went live in 2023

Introduction to Longevity

Page 40 of 47



Longevity Michigan Market

• LHP of MI is currently serving 
850+ members across 16 counties:

Calhoun, Genesee, Grand Traverse, Ingham, 
Kalamazoo, Kent, Livingston, Macomb, 
Monroe, Oakland, Ogemaw, Ottawa, 
Saginaw, St. Clair, Washtenaw, Wayne
2024 planned expansion into Bay, Berrien, 
Clare, Eaton, Gladwin, Isabella, Lake, 
Midland, Van Buren

6

Process for Adding Counties

CMS Initial Application in November, 2023
Final Application in February,2024 (Model of Care and 
Network Adequacy)
GoLive on January 1, 2025

Page 41 of 47



Introduction to ISNP Economics – Follow the Flow of Funds

7Confidential – do not reproduce or distribute

CMS pays PREMIUM to Longevity per member per month based on risk adjustment “RAF”

Longevity pays MEDICAL EXPENSES to all healthcare providers rendering care covered by Part A and Part B

After All Medical Expenses Have Been Paid – Longevity Shares What’s Left with its Nursing Homes 

Page 42 of 47



Longevity Health Institutional Special Needs Plan (ISNP)

Social Needs 

Companion

Hearing Vision

PodiatryNon-Emergency 

Transportation

Music 

Therapy

Health Product 

Benefit

A plan built specifically with skilled nursing facility residents in mind.

Confidential – do not reproduce or distribute

* ~98+% of our members are dually eligible and do not have any out-of-pocket expenses

Page 43 of 47



Assess, Stratify, Intervene

❑ Comprehensive geriatrics 
exam, risk stratify and 
interdisciplinary plan of care 
for each member

❑ Plan of care incorporates 
members goals of care/ 
advanced directives and 
integrates with the SNF’s 
plan of care

❑ Emphasis on reducing 
avoidable hospital 
admissions & re-admissions

Communication

❑ Between PCP, hospitals, SNF 
staff, family / authorized 
representative, social 
worker, pharmacist, 
specialists

❑ NPs coordinate with SNF
staff for optimal member
management

❑ NP’s frequently make 
rounds to identify early 
changes in condition

❑ Accurate documentation
and ICD10 coding

Care Coordination

❑ Facilitating/managing skilled 
events, prior auth process, 
access to network providers

❑ Coordination with 
specialists and care 
transitions

❑ Supplemental Benefits to 
increase wellness and 
engagement

Innovation

❑ Telemedicine

❑ Dedicated psych program

❑ Aligned incentives with NHs, 
PCPs, NPs, and telemedicine 
partners to improve care
and reduce unnecessary 
utilization

❑ Special supplemental 
programs for targeted sub-
populations to support 
member needs

LHP ISNP Model of Care

9Confidential – do not reproduce or distributePage 44 of 47



Buildings who work within the LHP ISNP construct will deliver better clinical quality AND earn significantly higher reimbursement

Evaluating the Fee for Service vs LHP ISNP Financial Equation

10

Traditional FFS Model LHP Capitation Model

Part A FFS 
(NET)

Part B FFS 
(NET)

Part A 
Capitation

Part B 
Capitation

Quality Bonus

Part A and B 
Bill Aboves

Shared 
Savings

SNF is paid for utilization 
The way to increase SNF payments 

is linked to the resident utilizing 
more Medicare covered services

SNF is paid for quality 
The way to increase SNF payments 

is linked to clinical quality and 
avoiding unnecessary covered 

services 

Increased 
Medicaid 

Days

Confidential – do not reproduce or distributePage 45 of 47



Page 46 of 47

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
8



Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Thursdays@7:00pm 
Enjoy a summer evening with great music, family 
and good friends. Note that parking is often limited, 
so feel free to catch a free ride complimentary of 
BATA’s Bayline Bus.

Support the powerful work 
of the Foundation
Freewill donations at the concerts will go directly to  
supporting the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation’s 
efforts to care for the elders in our community.  
*Concerts are subject to change due to inclement weather.

June 20th All About Buffet - Doc Probes 
and the Rip Tides

June 27th Elvis Tribute Artist - Jake Slater
July 11th Miriam Pico and Friends
July 18th Petoskey Steel Drum Band
July 25th Backroom Gang

August 1st The Gordon Lightfoot Tribute
August 8th Some Like It Yacht

 August 15th K. Jones and The Benzie Playboys

Concerts  
on the  
Lawn

Title Sponsor

With Support From

Headliner Sponsors

20
24

L e g a c y  7Page 47 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
9


